
BCP Council Offices, Town Hall, Bourne Avenue, Bournemouth BH2 6DY 

 

 
 

 

Notice of Health and Wellbeing Board 
 

Date: Thursday, 4 June 2020 at 10.00 am 

Venue: Skype 

 

Membership: 

Chairman:  

Cllr V Slade Leader of the Council (BCP Council) 

Vice-Chairman:  

T Goodson NHS Dorset Clinical Commissioning Group 

Cllr L Dedman Portfolio Holder for Adults and Health (BCP Council) 
Cllr S Moore Portfolio Holder for Children and Families (BCP Council) 
Cllr K Wilson Portfolio Holder for Housing (BCP Council) 
Graham Farrant Chief Executive (BCP Council) 
Jan Thurgood Corporate Director, Adult Social Care (BCP Council) 
Judith Ramsden Corporate Director, Children's Services (BCP Council) 
Kate Ryan Corporate Director, Environment and Community (BCP Council) 
Sam Crowe Director, Public Health (BCP Council) 
D Fleming NHS Poole Hospital and Royal Bournemouth and Christchurch Hospital 
E Yafele Dorset Healthcare Foundation 

S Sandcraft NHS Dorset Clinical Commissioning Group 

R Ramtohal NHS Dorset Clinical Commissioning Group 

D Richardson NHS Dorset Clinical Commissioning Group 

T Knight NHS Dorset Cinical Commissioning Group 

L Bate Healthwatch 

K Loftus Bournemouth and Poole Voluntary Services Councils 

S Why Dorset and Whiltshire Fire and Rescue Service 

J Vaughan Dorset Police 
 

All Members of the Health and Wellbeing Board are summoned to attend this meeting to 
consider the items of business set out on the agenda below. 
 

The press and public are welcome to view the live stream of this meeting at the following 
link: https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=4530 
 
If you would like any further information on the items to be considered at the meeting please 
contact: Democratic Services or email Democratic.Services@bcpcouncil.gov.uk 
 

Press enquiries should be directed to the Press Office: Tel: 01202 454668 or 
email press.office@bcpcouncil.gov.uk 
  

This notice and all the papers mentioned within it are available at democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk 

 

A
v
a

ila
b
le

 o
n

lin
e
 a

n
d

 

o
n
 t

h
e
 M

o
d
.g

o
v
 a

p
p
 

 

 

 

 

 
GRAHAM FARRANT 

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 

 

27 May 2020 
 



 

 anne.brown@bcpcouncil.gov.uk  

 

mailto:anne.brown@bcpcouncil.gov.uk


 

 

AGENDA 
Items to be considered while the meeting is open to the public 

1.   Apologies  

 To receive any apologies for absence from Board Members. 
 

 

2.   Substitute Members  

 To receive information on any changes in the membership of the Board. 
 

 

3.   Declarations of Interests  

 Board Members are requested to declare any interests on items included in 
this agenda. Please refer to the workflow on the preceding page for 
guidance. 

Declarations received will be reported at the meeting. 
 

 

4.   Public Issues  

 To receive any public questions, statements or petitions submitted in 
accordance with the Constitution. Further information on the requirements 
for submitting these is available to view at the following link:- 

https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeID=15
1&Info=1&bcr=1 

The deadline for the submission of public questions is Thursday 28 May 
2020  

The deadline for the submission of a statement is 12.00 noon, Wednesday 
3 June 2020. 

The deadline for the submission of a petition is 12.00 noon, Wednesday 3 
June 2020. 
 

 

5.   Confirmation of Minutes and Action Sheet  

 To consider the following:  
 

 

a)   Minutes of the meeting held on 30 January 2020 5 - 10 

 To confirm and sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 
30 January 2020. 

 

b)   Action Sheet 11 - 14 

 To note and comment as required on the action sheet which tracks 
decisions, actions and outcomes arising from previous meetings of the 
Board. 

 

6.   The Response to Covid 19 of Health and Wellbeing Board Partners 15 - 30 

 The Board will receive a presentation on Covid 19 to include arrangements 
for recovery. 
 
 

 

 

https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeID=151&Info=1&bcr=1
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeID=151&Info=1&bcr=1


 
 

 

7.   Community Response to Covid 19 31 - 38 

 To receive an update in respect of the above. 
 

 

8.   The Application of Care Act Easements for BCP Adult Social Care 39 - 44 

 To receive an update in respect of the above. 
 

 

9.   Better Care Fund - Planning for 2019/20 45 - 54 

 To receive an update in respect of the above. 
 

 

10.   Coronavirus (Covid 19) Care Home Support Plan 55 - 60 

 To receive an update in respect of the above. 
 

 

11.   SEND - LGA Peer Review 61 - 66 

 To receive an update in respect of the above. 
 

 

12.   Forward Plan 67 - 74 

 To receive an update in respect of the development of the Forward Plan. 
 

 

 
No other items of business can be considered unless the Chairman decides the matter is urgent for reasons that 
must be specified and recorded in the Minutes. 

 



 – 1 – 
 

BOURNEMOUTH, CHRISTCHURCH AND POOLE COUNCIL 
 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
 

Minutes of the Meeting held on 30 January 2020 at 10.00 am 
 

Present:- 

Cllr V Slade – Chairman 

  

Present: Cllr L Dedman, Cllr S Moore, Cllr K Wilson, Jan Thurgood, 
Judith Ramsden, Kate Ryan, Sam Crowe, D Fleming, S Sandcraft, 
D Richardson, L Bate, K Loftus, S Why and J Vaughan 

 
  

22. Apologies  
Apologies for absence were received from T Goodson (NHS Dorset Clinical 
Commissioning Group); G Farrant (Chief Executive, Bournemouth, 
Christchurch and Poole Council); E Yafele (NHS Dorset Healthcare 
Foundation) and J Vaughan (Dorset Police). 
 

23. Substitute Members  
C Hicks (NHS Dorset Healthcare Foundation) attended as substitute for E 
Yafele and J Fielding (Dorset Police) attended as substitute for J Vaughan. 
 

24. Declarations of Interests  
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

25. Minutes of meeting held on 25 September 2019  
The Minutes of the meeting held on 25th September 2019 were confirmed 
as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.  
 
S Crowe (Director of Public Health, BCP Council) confirmed that the 
questions raised at the previous meeting relating to pharmacy changes as 
part of the pharmaceutical needs assessment referred to had been 
answered and copies of the answers would be provided with the Minutes of 
the meeting. 
 

26. Action Sheet  
The Board noted the Action Sheet. 
 

27. Public Issues  
There were no formal public issues submitted. 
 

28. BCP Council Local Plan  
Nick Perrins (Head of Planning, BCP Council) presented a report, a copy of 
which had been circulated to each Member and a copy of which appears as 
Appendix 'A' to these Minutes in the Minute Book.  
 
The Head of Planning made a presentation to the Board about the BCP 
Council Local Plan process and the timetable of consultation involved 
leading up to adoption of the Plan at the end of 2020.  
 

5

Agenda Item 5a



– 2 – 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
30 January 2020 

 
A whole range of aspects of the Local Plan had potentially an impact on 
Health and Wellbeing of the community including particularly areas such as 
the environment, housing, disability and access, public health, healthy living 
and using development control to design out the potential for crime and 
‘harm’. There was clear opportunity to work together on development of 
policy that would ultimately support the objectives of the Board. 
 
There was reference to direct correlation with the objectives set out within 
the adopted BCP Council strategy as summarised within the corporate 
strategy ‘wheel’ diagram and particularly the objective of creating vibrant 
communities across the Council area. The Leader of the Council explained 
the process of setting key performance indicators to monitor progress 
towards, and achievement of, corporate goals and to that end the 
importance of the Council and the Board working together was 
emphasised. The role that the Local Plan would play was an example of the 
cross-Council co-operation that was required. 
 
It was reported that, as a central part of the current Plan consultation 
period, specific comments were being received from Organisations but that 
there were issues that could most effectively be addressed by the Board 
acting together and cross-cutting. 
 
A Task and Finish Group including local NHS Organisations was already in 
place looking at the issue of developer contributions and there was 
opportunity for its work to be expanded to focus more broadly on Local Plan 
development. On an associated issue, the Board was also informed that an 
‘Air Quality Policy’ to include air quality within buildings, was also in the 
course of preparation and that this too was something that could be brought 
to the Board. 
 
The Board considered the range of options for taking these issues forward. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the emerging BCP Council Local Plan and its links with the 
Health and Wellbeing Board be the subject for the Board’s 
Development Session scheduled on 4 June 2020. 
 

29. BCP Housing Strategy  
Loraine Mealings (Director of Housing, BCP Council) and Kerry Ruff 
(Housing Enabling Manager, BCP Council) delivered a presentation 
emphasising the links between the Housing Strategy and the health agenda 
and explaining that a new Strategy was in the course of preparation with a 
12 week public consultation phase commencing in April with the aim of a 
final report to Council in October 2020. 
 
Engagement with the Health and Wellbeing Board was welcomed and 
encouraged as the Strategy was being developed and a workshop 
approach was suggested to explore some of the key linkages including 
areas such key worker and social housing provision. 
 

6



– 3 – 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
30 January 2020 

 
It was agreed that, in this wide and complex area, key questions for 
discussion at a workshop event should be agreed and circulated before the 
meeting to enable thought to be given to the issues in advance and to 
ensure that the Organisations on the Board were represented by 
appropriate specialist professionals. 
 
Consideration would also be given to including this subject alongside the 
Local Plan discussions already scheduled for the Development Session in 
June. 
 
RESOLVED  
 
That the report on the emerging BCP Council Housing Strategy be 
noted and the linkages between Health and Wellbeing and the 
Housing Strategy be considered in full at the Board’s Development 
Session on 4 June 2020 together with the Local Plan. 
 

30. Dementia Services Review Update  
Diane Bardwell (NHS Dorset Clinical Commissioning Group) presented a 
report, a copy of which had been circulated to each Member and a copy of 
which appears as Appendix 'B' to these Minutes in the Minute Book.  
 
The report and presentation described a rigorous process of needs 
assessment, data analysis and view seeking which had resulted in a co-
produced new model for dementia care in Dorset. The nature of the new 
model was described and its various elements explained. A new dementia 
care pathway was set out and the role of a team of Dementia Co-ordinators 
explained involving less fragmented and more streamlined care with 
emphasis on support for people with dementia and their carers from 
diagnosis onwards. The anticipated benefits of the approach were set out 
and, subject to financial decisions to be taken by Dorset Clinical 
Commissioning Group, implementation was expected to commence during 
the current year. 
 
The Board welcomed this important and significant development which, 
once again, linked in with the Council’s strategic objectives around creating 
‘age friendly communities’. Organisations represented on the Board 
recognised their own roles and welcomed opportunities for involvement. 
There was also agreement of the need to continue to lobby at Central 
Government level for maintaining and increasing support for this expanding 
area of need. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the Health and Wellbeing Board note the proposals for the future 
model for provision of dementia care and the evidence of need on 
which the new model has been based. 
    
 
 
 

7



– 4 – 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
30 January 2020 

 
31. Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) - Quarterly Update  

The Board received a short verbal update on the current position and it was 
reported that a Local Government Association ‘Peer Review’ team were 
currently on site undertaking the review as commissioned by the BCP 
Council Health and Wellbeing Board. Following its conclusion a more 
substantive report would be made to the next meeting of the Board. 
 

32. CAMHS Transformation Update  
Elaine Hurll (NHS Dorset Clinical Commissioning Group) presented a 
report, a copy of which had been circulated to each Member and a copy of 
which appears as Appendix 'C' to these Minutes in the Minute Book.  
 
The report to the Board provided information about and an update on 
progress with transformation of Children and Adolescent Mental Health 
Services (‘CAMHS’) and there was an opportunity for the Board to 
contribute to development plans. By way of background, the current service 
was described within the context of the challenges currently facing the 
service and the influence of locally driven developments. 
 
The report also set out a high-level timetable of activity within various 
workstreams including needs analysis, view seeking and strategy and 
business case development. It was noted that practical issues such as 
recruitment were likely to influence the implementation timetable. The 
overall objective was to ensure that all children living in Dorset were able to 
access the right support at the right time. A new approach entitled 
‘Assessment and Brief Intervention’ was described as an essential element 
of the transformation and would significantly improve access and referral 
and ensure that interventions were most effectively delivered in a timely 
way and better reflected the needs of the particular service user. There 
were also essential links with adult mental healthcare provision. 
 
It was accepted that the role of the Board was to ensure that there was joint 
ownership of the process and that the Board was able to maintain 
appropriate overview. This would include, for example, having a role in 
promoting the ‘voice’ of young people in addressing their needs. Other 
Organisations represented on the Board would also have a relevant input.  
 
RESOLVED 
 

(a) That the Health and Wellbeing Board note the update on the 
CAMHS transformation project; 

 
(b) That a similar report be presented, as soon as possible, to the 

BCP Council Children’s Services Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee; 

 
(c) That in order to maintain an overview, a further report on 

progress of the CAMHS transformation project be presented to 
the Board in six months. 

 
 

8



– 5 – 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
30 January 2020 

 
 

33. Outcomes and Actions from the Development Session 28 November 2019  
Jan Thurgood (Corporate Director, Adult Social Care, BCP Council) 
presented a report, a copy of which had been circulated to each Member 
and a copy of which appears as Appendix ‘D' to these Minutes in the 
Minute Book.  
 
The Board received a summary in the form of a public record of discussions 
at the Health and Wellbeing Development Session which took place on 28 
November 2019. Particularly, the areas covered included the multi-agency 
response to working with high deprivation; development of a BCP Health 
and Wellbeing Strategy and identification of priorities for the Local 
Government Peer Review of Special Educational Needs and Disabilities.  
 
It was also noted that a presentation on ‘Promoting Active Life’ could be 
made to the next meeting of the Board. 
 
RESOLVED 
 

(a) That the Health and Wellbeing Board approve the public record 
of the Development Session on 28 November 2019 including the 
decisions identified in the report; 

 
(b) That the Health and Wellbeing Board approve the Health and 

Wellbeing Strategy framework as set out and that the 
framework be used by Officers to further develop the Strategy 
before bringing the Strategy back to the meeting of the Board in 
June 2020. 

 
34. Our Dorset - Looking Forward Pan  

It was reported that in accordance with delegated powers, the Plan had 
been signed off and officially submitted to NHS England which was 
undertaking an approval process for all local area plans. 
 

35. Forward Plan  
The Board confirmed the Forward Plan subject to the additions agreed in 
these Minutes. 
 

36. Future Meeting Dates  
The Board was reminded that a list of prospective meeting dates had been 
circulated prior to the meeting. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
(a) That future meetings of the Board be agreed as follows: 
 
26 March 2020; 
17 June 2020; 
1 October 2020; 
21 January 2021; 
18 March 2021; 

9



– 6 – 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
30 January 2020 

 
17 June 2021; 
 
with all meetings commencing at 10am. 
 
(b) That, in addition, informal Development Sessions be held on:  
 
27 February 2020; and 
4 June 2020. 
 
 
 
 

The meeting ended at 12.26 pm  

 CHAIRMAN 

10



ACTION SHEET – BOURNEMOUTH, CHRISTCHURCH AND POOLE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
 

Minute 
number 

Item  Action*  
*Items remain until action completed. 

Benefit Outcome (where 
recommendations 
are made to other 
bodies) 

Actions arising from Board meeting: 24 July 2019 

7 Amendment to the 
Protocol   
 
 

Decision Made: 
 
The Board sought to amend the Protocol to allow substitute 
members. 
 

 Actioned – It was confirmed that named substitutes 
could be provided on an ad hoc basis until the 
business protocol is reviewed  
 

To enable members to 
send representatives in 
their absence  
 
 

N/A 
 

8 Approval of Better 
Care Fund Plan 
2019/20 –  
 

 

Decision Made: 
 
That the Health and Wellbeing Board agree the Better Care 
Fund Plan prior to it going through NHS I and NHS England 
for a national assurance process 
 

 Actioned – Included in the Forward Plan for 
September 
 

To enable the Boards 
views to be considered 
and to enable the 
Board to maintain 
oversight of this issue. 
 
 

N/A 
 

10 SEND Update 
 
Transformation 
Board Governance 
Proposals  
 
 
 

Decision Made:  
 
That the Transformation Board bring back clear proposals 
on the Governance expectations of the Board. To include 
clear guidance on the differing functions of Cabinet and the 
Health and Wellbeing Board 
 

To ensure greater 
clarity around the 
Governance 
expectations of the 
Board 
 
 
 

N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

11

A
genda Item

 5b



Minute 
number 

Item  Action*  
*Items remain until action completed. 

Benefit Outcome (where 
recommendations 
are made to other 
bodies) 

 
Transformation 
Plan  

 Actioned – Included in the Forward plan for 
November 
 
That the Improvement Plan is bought back to the Board and 
includes consideration on how to include disengaged 
parents and carers in the Parent and Carer Forum and 
suggestions for monitoring the gap between those 
presenting with a SEND need and those receiving services.  
 

 Actioned – Included in the Forward plan for 
November 
 

 
 
 
To enable the Board to 
maintain oversight of 
this issue. 

 
 
 
N/A 
 

Actions arising from Board meeting: 25 September 2019 

17  Better Care Fund 
Plan  

Decision Made:  
 
 The Board to receive an update on whether national 
assurance was passed.  
 
 
The Board to receive a full update on the BCF Plan  

 
 Actioned – Included in the Forward Plan for March 
 

To enable the Board to 
maintain oversight of 
this issue. 
 
 

 

18 Special 
Educational Needs 
and Disabilities – 
Quarterly Update  

Decision Made: 
 
That the next quarterly update on SEND include the 
outcome of the survey and includes the views of those aged 
18-25.  
 

To enable the Board to 
maintain oversight of 
this issue. 
 
 
 
 

 

12



Minute 
number 

Item  Action*  
*Items remain until action completed. 

Benefit Outcome (where 
recommendations 
are made to other 
bodies) 

That the LGA work with the Board to agree the scope of the 
Peer Review 
 

 Actioned – The Board agreed to consider the scope 
of the Peer Review at their developmental session on 
28 November 2019 
 

To enable the Boards 
views to be considered 

19 Pharmacy 
Applications  

Decision Made: 
 
The Director of Public Health would provide information on 
whether dispensing DR’s were included in the applications 
for consultation and how local people would be informed of 
pharmacy closures 
 

 Actioned – Director of Public Health, BCP Council) 
confirmed that the questions raised at the previous 
meeting relating to pharmacy changes as part of the 
pharmaceutical needs assessment referred to had been 
answered and copies of the answers would be provided 
with the Minutes of the meeting. 
 

To enable the Board to 
maintain oversight of 
this issue. 
 

 

20 Forward Plan  Decision Made: 
 
To consider an item on Suicide Prevention  
 

 Actioned – Included on the Forward Plan 
 
 

To enable the Board to 
maintain oversight of 
this issue.  
 

 

Actions arising from Board meeting: 25 September 2019 

13



Minute 
number 

Item  Action*  
*Items remain until action completed. 

Benefit Outcome (where 
recommendations 
are made to other 
bodies) 

28 BCP Council Local 
Plan  

Decision made: 
 
That the emerging BCP Council Local Plan and its links with 
the Health and Wellbeing Board be the subject for the 
Board’s Development Session scheduled on 4 June 2020. 
 
Note - Development Session will be rescheduled  
 

To enable the Board to 
contribute to the 
development of the 
Plan  

N/A 

29 BCP Housing 
Strategy  

Decision made: 
 
That the report on the emerging BCP Council Housing 
Strategy be noted and the linkages between Health and 
Wellbeing and the Housing Strategy be considered in full at 
the Board’s Development Session on 4 June 2020 together 
with the Local Plan. 
 
Note – Development session will be rescheduled  
 

To enable the Board to 
contribute to the 
development of the 
Strategy. 

N/A 

32 CAMHS 
Transformation 
Update 

Decision made: 
 
(b) That a similar report be presented, as soon as possible, 
to the BCP Council Children’s Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee;  
 
(c) That in order to maintain an overview, a further report on 
progress of the CAMHS transformation project be presented 
to the Board in six months. 
 

 Actioned – Included on the Forward Plan 
 
 

  

 

14



BCP Mission statement here 

Health & Wellbeing Board 
4 June 2020
Response to Covid19 by Health and Wellbeing Board Partners

15

A
genda Item

 6



• By 20th May, the pandemic had resulted in 465 confirmed cases in BCP 
Council

• These infections have resulted across the BCP and Dorset Council areas in 
142 deaths among people admitted to hospital – and 120 deaths among people 
living in care homes as at 20th May

• The overall infection rate in the South West Region remains the lowest at 131 
cases per 100,000 population

• Our local outbreak is characterised by ongoing transmission in clusters 
associated with high risk settings like hospitals and care homes – not 
widespread community transmission

How has COVID-19 affected BCP to date?

16



17



NHS Response to Covid 19
Preparing for Surge and Changes to Services 
• Emptying hospital beds; 
• Temporary building works;
• Increasing critical care capacity
• Nightingale hospital and 

commissioning of the independent 
sector

• Stopping elective work
• Stopping face to face outpatients
• Staff training

• Community led hospital discharge 
arrangements and ceasing of CHC 
assessments 

• Total triage model in primary care 
and video consults

• Hot and cold sites
• Home visiting  - primary and 

community services
• Additional support to care homes

18



NHS Response to 
Covid 19
Operating with Covid
19 

• Huge PPE requirements;
• Testing requirements;
• Segregation within sites;
• Staff having to self-isolate
• Use of technology – working from 

home

19



NHS Response to 
Covid 19
Concerns 

• Reduction in referral to services, EG: 
Cancer, Children’s, Cardiac

• Prescribing surge
• Mental health impact
• Latent demand – future surge in 

activity
• Peaks in COVID 19

20



NHS Response to 
Covid 19
Phase 2 

• Now underway 
• At least 12 month impact
• Balancing reintroduction of 

routine work and being prepared 
for surges and managing 
segregation 

• Keep technology changes
• Keep PCN/NHS and Care partners 

working together

21



NHS Response to 
Covid 19
Public Engagement 

• Warning and Informing group 
• Key messages to the public about 

services being open
• Maintaining strong relationships 

with community groups and 
organisations

• Statutory duties to involve the 
public are informing the context 
of recovery planning.

22



• Brokerage (schools; early years)
• Reasonable endeavours (EHCPs) and 

Local Offer
• Workforce resilience (schools; services)
• Redeploying to support safeguarding 

response
• Intelligence, tracking & oversight, action 

(schools and LA)
• Mobilising schools, settings & providers and 

use of SPOCs

• Responding to non-attendance and 
building in support (enhanced 
arrangements; LWs)

• Engagement, IAG with parents/ carers
• Surveying and responding to children’s  

mental  health and well-being
• Consultation lines; e-resources
Next steps:
• EHCP arrangements
• School attendance

Children’s Services

23



Key areas of focus:
• Working with partners to implement changes to hospital discharge to enable 

hospitals to have capacity
• Social Care Act Easements – 3 Easements in place due to social distancing 

related to closure of day centres; hearing loss services and disability related 
adaptations 

• Contacts for adult social care have remained at the same level prior to 
COVID19 but with greater emphasis on issues related to economic hardship

• Increase in adult social care safeguarding referrals from professionals and 
volunteers supporting those who are social distancing or who are shielded.

• Very active support of the adult social care provider sector with a particular 
focus on Care Homes. Nationally mandated Local Social Care Support 
Planning documents submitted on 29th May 

Adult Social Care

24



• Significant increase in single homeless in temporary accommodation – rough 
sleepers and ‘hidden homeless’ (e.g. sofa surfers) – 300 in B and Bs

• 15-20 people rough sleeping
• Homeless families remain steady – very few if any in B and B
• Domestic abuse homelessness increase, links with Community Safety
• No early release offenders or hospital discharge homeless but plans in place
• Expecting significant homeless demand when lockdown further relaxed
• Risk & needs assessments / Close working with PHE and drugs and alcohol team
• Focus on keeping customers and staff safe – robust risk assessments
• Increased face to face contact - to assess and reassure

Impact on Housing and Homelessness

25



• Move-on strategy - ‘Buffer’ voids in Council & Housing Association stock, 
HomeChoice reset – homeless direct lets plus urgents, PRS moves

• Rough sleeper and temporary accommodation Covid multi-agency groups
• Homelessness Reduction Board fortnightly, Homelessness Partnership relaunch
• MHCLG Homelessness Team - regular contact
• 1,000s of welfare calls to Council Housing tenants, Housing Association tenants 

and those in housing need
• Housing Association meetings & guidance shared with other housing providers
• BCP Safeguarding and Vulnerable Persons Group focus

Impact on Housing and Homelessness

26



• Weekly Partnership Co-ordinating Group and fortnightly Community Safety Partnership Board with a temporarily 
amended emphasis on Covid 19 in place

• Reduction in Crime seen at the start of lockdown is starting to level off

• Increase in Anti-social behaviour complaints - some around Covid restrictions, but not all – increasing neighbour 
disputes & reports of drug dealing

• Starting to see increased reporting of domestic abuse – some low level family disputes & adolescent to parent abuse, 
but no increase in high/medium risk cases

• MARAC meetings are continuing to function well

• Community Safety Partnership have adopted a Covid 19 Response Strategy which seeks to;

– Provide safe and secure accommodation
– Bring offenders to justice
– Safeguard victims, children and vulnerable adults
– Provide early intervention and support to prevent harm 

Impact on Crime and Disorder

27



Inequality and deprivation
COVID-19 deaths more likely in males than females – and fatality rate rises with age, especially 
45+; death rate in deprived areas 2x least deprived, urban areas had highest death rates; deaths 
in BAME groups > expected; indirect impacts on inequality from economic impact as yet unknown 
but likely to be substantial – accommodation and food services most affected = lower paid workers
Mental health
Rise in anxiety associated with lockdown, and especially among financially affected – half of adults 
reported high anxiety in March 2020 compared with previous period (21%); economic insecurity 
and tenure status (private rental) key factors; locally picking up increased calls to helplines and 
services for support (Office for National Statistics)
Physical health
More people accessing LiveWell Dorset for smoking cessation support; fewer people exercising 
regularly + inequality dimension; more accessing support for drug dependency 
More people believe UK will be more united and kinder after outbreak than before

Impact on Health & Wellbeing of the Population

28



• The strength of BCP’s voluntary sector has been demonstrated in response to Covid 19 

• Many organisations and groups across the sector have adapted to meet the needs of the community as 
well as the need to change operating models to account for the situation

• We have seen a significant increase in volunteering and community groups working together in their local 
neighbourhoods

• In some areas activity has slowed down due to volunteer availability and capacity – this is a longer term 
concern

• Future viability concerns are a clear challenge to consider for the whole sector – particular risk area is 
Community Associations managing local community centres

• Maintaining and sustaining is the focus of the sector now as we move in to recovery

• The challenge now – how do we ensure we don’t just rely on the sector in a time of crisis, but include in 
our new normal?

Impact on Voluntary Sector

29



All partners beginning to work as single agencies and in partnerships on a 
recovery and reset agenda with intention to learn from positive innovations made 
in response to COVD19 

BCP Health and Well-Being Strategy to be considered for approval at Board 
meeting in July 2020

Annual theme for 202/21 was agreed to be promotion of physical activity for all 
local people – Board’s views invited on how to progress in light of pandemic. 

Recovery and Reset

30



HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

 

Report subject  Community Response to Covid 19  

Meeting date  4 June 2020 

Status  Public Report   

Executive summary  This report summarises the community response activity across  

Bournemouth, Christchurch and Poole under the following  

themes; 

 Operation Shield 

 Together We Can 

 Voluntary and Community Sector 

Recommendations It is RECOMMENDED that:  

 the Board notes the update provided 

Reason for 
recommendations 

To ensure the Health and Wellbeing Board are updated on the 
community response across Bournemouth, Christchurch and Poole 
as a result of Covid 19.  

  

31

Agenda Item 7



Portfolio Holder(s):  Councillor Lewis Allison: Cabinet Member for Communities 

Corporate Director  Kate Ryan: Corporate Director for Environment and Communities 

Report Authors 
Kelly Ansell, Director of Communities 

 

Wards  All  

Classification  For Information 
Title:  

Operation Shield 

1. Following the outbreak of Covid-19 in the UK, local authorities were directed to set 

up local hubs in order to provide support to ‘Operation Shield’ residents in their area 

who were clinically vulnerable and required to isolate for a period of 12 weeks.  

 

2. Initially the priority was for each hub to receive government food allocations and 

distribute them as an emergency effort in the first week of isolation and this was 

successfully completed. From week 2, a government organised distribution process 

began, with food parcels being delivered by food wholesalers direct to the doors of 

Operation Shield residents who had requested support with access to food.  

 

3. Local hubs were also asked to act as a data hub where information relating to the 

shielded group would be regularly sent for local consideration and action. The data 

received is a daily report on those shielded residents who have registered for support 

as well as a list of shielded patients directly identified from NHS data, provided on a 

regular basis.  

 

4. Councils are being provided with the following data to help them identify, contact, 

and support those who have been advised to shield; 

 

i. NHS Shielding Patient List - patient data on clinically extremely vulnerable people 

who have been asked to shield  

  

ii. ‘Incoming’ registration data from the gov.uk website and 0800 telephone number, 

on the registered support needs of a clinically extremely vulnerable person (food and 

basic care)  

  

iii. Food delivery outcomes data from the wholesalers who deliver food packages to 

those who have requested support with essential groceries  

  

iv. ‘Closed’ (unanswered or inconclusive) contacts data on people on the Shielding 

Patient List who have not yet registered their needs and with whom we have not 

been able to make successful contact with because of non-response or inconclusive 

calls 

 

32



5. The data provided has been cumbersome to work with, with a significant need for 

data cleansing on a regular basis. However, once that cleansing has taken place, the 

BCP local hub has been able to use the information provided to proactively contact 

shielded residents to check on their welfare and provide direct assistance through a 

dedicated helpline and volunteer hub. There are 16,300 patients on the BCP NHS 

Shielding Patient list and 6,000 BCP residents have registered for assistance through 

the government website or helpline. All 6000 residents have been contacted and 

assessed though the BCP local hub arrangements and daily reporting arrangements 

enable contact to be made as registrations filter through. At the time of writing this 

report a data cleanse of those 16,300 NHS shielded patients is taking place in order 

to target proactive contact to those who have not yet engaged.  

 

6. BCP Council has also set up a process whereby those shielded residents who we 

have not been able to contact, are visited by a member of staff in order to directly 

check on their welfare. To date over 100 visits have taken place. 2 residents were 

found to be in immediate need of assistance and appropriate safeguarding 

arrangements were made. All residents who have been contacted have been 

extremely grateful for the approach from the Council to check on their welfare. 

 

7. The ongoing requirements of Operation Shield are not yet clear, but scenario 

planning work has taken place with local hub leads in order to support consideration 

of a sustained programme. In addition, MHCLG Guidance issued on 19th May 2020 

asks local hubs to support the initiative by providing outcome information for all NHS 

shielded residents. The information we are required to report on is broken down in to 

three themes; 

 

a. Wholesaler food delivery follow up 

b. Unanswered or Inconclusive contacts 

c. Basic care - the term ‘care’ incorporates a range of support, including Social Care 

(e.g. Adult Social Care or Children’s Social Care); basic care (e.g. domestic and 

personal support); and well-being (including social contact).  

 

8. At the time of writing this report, the Community Resilience Response team were 

considering the detail of this new guidance and undertaking data cross referencing in 

order to establish how much reporting of historical contact is achievable and how 

many additional pro-active calls and welfare checks  are required as a result.  

 

Together We Can Partnership 

9. In addition to the Operation Shield work, BCP Council took the decision to set up a 
response cell which would focus on Community Resilience and Response, reporting 
into the Council’s Corporate Incident Management Team. A partnership group was 
established on 19th March 2020 including representatives from public and voluntary 
and community sector organisations with the purpose of providing co-ordinated 
community leadership and appropriate support in response to issues related to social 
distancing, self-isolation and impact of COVID 19 on communities and vulnerable 
groups. The work of this partnership quickly developed in to several priority 
workstreams; 

 

33



a. Dedicated Helpline and Volunteer Hub 

b. Access to Food 

c. Communications 

d. Community Development Projects 

e. Local Business Support 

f. Financial Resilience 

 
Dedicated Helpline and Volunteer Hub 

10. BCP Council launched a helpline operating seven days per week from 8am to 8pm 

on 27 March 2020. The helpline is accompanied by a volunteer hub which, in 

partnership with our Community Action Network, created a volunteer workforce of 

2,500 participants at rapid pace specifically deployable to our communities as a 

response to the crisis.  

 

11. The service responds to calls for assistance across multiple support areas, as well as 

making proactive calls to the Operation Shield cohort within the BCP area - 

assessing need and providing assistance by signposting, providing advice or directly 

deploying a volunteer to assist.  

 

12. As at 20th May 2020 a total of 10,715 requests for support have been made through 

the helpline and an accompanying webform. 69% of all calls are dealt with at first 

contact, with our call centre either providing advice or signposting. However, 31% 

have required further assistance, equating to some 3,321 cases being supported by 

a second-tier call centre arrangement. Of these cases, over 1,300 volunteers have 

been directly matched to vulnerable residents to support them with shopping, picking 

up prescriptions or simply being a person to be in touch with given the isolation of 

their situation.  

 

13. In addition to the responsive nature of the helpline, the service has proactively 

contacted 6,000 Operation Shield residents to ensure they are safe and well, able to 

access food, prescriptions and other essentials, and to consider whether they would 

benefit from the support of a volunteer to tackle any loneliness and wellbeing issues.  

Access to Food 

14. The partnership has been able to support local foodbanks and community fridges to 
sustain supply and through our volunteer hub, we have been able to allocate 
volunteers to support their critical efforts.  

 
15. Weekend emergency hubs to provide food parcels were quickly established using 

unwanted Operation Shield parcels and foodbank stocks to support residents with 
urgent food supplies delivered direct to their doors. Partnerships with FareShare and 
other initiatives such as local WhatsApp groups were set up to support the 
redistribution of bulk food donations. 

 
16. A new partnership forum has been developed to connect food charities and 

community organisations to maximise the benefit of the resources available. Rapidly 

34



deployed video-call technology facilitates 80 groups joining regular co-ordination 
meetings, tackling hidden hunger and providing resilience.  

 

Communications 

17. Critical to this work has been our communications workstream where considerable 

effort has been committed to ensuring that messaging was widely available to ensure 

promotion of the services and initiatives available through the partnership. The 

#TogetherWeCan brand was developed in the early stages of the partnership and a 

range of digital and offline assets were created at pace. The brand has been applied 

consistently across council platforms, including website and social media.  

 

18. In addition, communications activities have supported the recruitment of volunteers, 

the production of targeted postcards for home delivery to residents over the age of 

70 and living alone, along with a further 30,000 postcards and posters hand delivered 

by Councillors and volunteers to their local area, with data-driven insight to assist 

targeted distribution. Assets have also been targeted to social housing, sheltered 

housing, GP surgeries, shops and pharmacies. Free digital advertising on almost 50 

bus shelters across the conurbation was secured to amplify awareness and promote 

#TogetherWeCan, and a partner briefing pack was produced and distributed via 

‘warning and informing’ networks.  

 

19. A dedicated microsite was developed, structured around getting involved, accessing 

help and a range of wellbeing content. This continues to be updated daily. All 

marketing and social media consistently shares the #TogetherWeCan brand, linking 

to relevant web content for accessing help, sharing success stories and encouraging 

wellbeing activities. The workstream has also managed the communication flow to 

businesses in creating awareness of opportunities for resilience, advice and funding. 

Community development projects 

20. Over 100 sets of information and resources have been identified and collated under 
themes including arts and crafts, education and learning, diversity, health and 
wellbeing. 

 
21. We have identified key vulnerable communities to support, including the socially 

isolated, Gypsy and Traveller communities, those whose first language is not 
English, the digitally isolated, and projects have been developed to engage with 
those communities.  Community Equality Champion Network meetings are held with 
a diverse range of communities to ensure they can raise any issues within their 
communities with us. 

 

Local Business Support 

22. A specific email address was set up to support the co-ordination of corporate offers 
from local businesses. 

 

35



23. This has supported appeals for food and PPE, which both the council, local care 
providers and charitable organisations have been able to benefit from. A specific call-
out for donations of laptops and mobile phones was successful enough to allow 
Citizen’s Advice to be able to recruit more staff and volunteers to provide their vital 
service for our residents from their homes. 

 

Financial Resilience 

24. Partners who provide advice to the public have come together to consider the 
response to the financial impact of Covid-19. A single point of contact is being 
pursued and will be supported by volunteers. Online resources have been developed 
and specific initiatives around Fraud Awareness and scams have been delivered.  

 
Voluntary and Community Sector  

25. The response to Covid 19 from the voluntary and community sector, as well as from 

local residents who have come forward as volunteers, has been astounding. Local 

groups have formed, or extended their existing efforts in order to come together to 

support the most vulnerable people in our communities.  

 

26. The Community Action Network (CAN) has been the central point of co-ordination 

across BCP, providing a pivotal role through the Together We Can partnership as 

well as maintaining their work in supporting the voluntary and community sector at 

this most challenging of times.  

 

27. Support for accessing funding has been crucial for local good causes at this time. 

CAN and the BCP Communities Team have been supporting multiple local 

organisations to apply for funding in order to support their activities. In addition, the 

council took the decision to focus our local grant fund generated by the BH Coastal 

Lottery, to ensure that community organisations responding to Covid 19 were 

prioritised for funds available.  

  

28. There is no doubt that Covid 19 will have created a challenge for the voluntary and 

community sector, and that as we move to recovery, the need for the support of the 

sector in our local communities will become more pronounced. CAN are currently 

reaching out to BCP voluntary and community sector  organisations in order to 

understand the impact of Covid 19 on funding, sustainability and future direction and 

following this, BCP Council is seeking to develop a Voluntary and Community Sector 

Strategy.  

 

Future Considerations 

29. We now need to balance response with recovery, accepting that the shielded 

population may remain so for some time yet. Alongside this there is the recognition 

that the new normal our communities emerge into is very different to the one we left 

behind.  

 

36



30. As a new council in its formative stages, the pandemic delayed a number of pieces of 

work around the development of a community engagement strategy, community 

regeneration strategy and the development of a community and voluntary sector 

strategy. However, the community and voluntary sector response which we have 

experienced during this time of crisis has enabled us to unlock community resources 

which we may never have known about prior to this emergency. What we have learnt 

and developed will greatly influence these key pieces of work and they will be far 

more robust and inclusive as a result. 

 

31. The sustained provision of the helpline and local hub service is currently being 

considered in order to ensure that we can continue to deliver as staff who were 

redeployed to this work return to their substantive posts. In addition, the newly 

published guidance referred to in para 8 requires urgent consideration of the ongoing 

resource and operational requirements for this service.  

 

Summary of financial implications 

32. None 

Summary of legal implications 

33. None 

Summary of human resources implications 

34. None 

Summary of sustainability impact 

35. None 

Summary of public health implications 

36. None 

Summary of equality implications 

37. The TWC helpline was established with a view to ensuring our most vulnerable 
residents receive the support they need in times of crisis. Resources have been 
developed and collated in a number of sources to ensure they are accessible to 
as many sectors of the community as possible. We have engaged with 
representative groups such as Dorset race Equality Council, Dorset Blind Society 
and others to reach out to our diverse communities. The Community Equalities 
Champion Network identified a number of issues around access to information for 
diverse communities which is now being addressed. We will continue to review 
and monitor the situation through our networks as well ensuring we access 
communities who we are not currently engaged with. 

Summary of risk assessment 

38. A detailed risk log is maintained as part of the overall project management of the 
community resilience response. The main risks have centred around 
safeguarding for volunteers and residents, ensuring our most vulnerable 

37



residents are aware of the support that is available, our approach to those we 
have been unable to contact and the ongoing staffing of the resource. 

Background papers 

None 

Appendices   

None 

38



 

Health and Wellbeing Board 

 

Report subject The Application of Care Act Easements for BCP Council 
Adult Social Care 

Meeting date 4 June 2020 

Status Public Report  

Executive summary To advise the Health and Wellbeing Board that BCP Council 
Adult Social Care has implemented three easements to the 
Care Act (2014) under powers granted by the Coronavirus Act 
(2020). 

The easements all follow a comprehensive evaluation of 
service changes resulting from the Covid-19 pandemic 
undertaken by the Principal Social Worker and are classified 
as “Level 2”; that is, using flexibilities already present within the 
Care Act to change, delay or cancel some service types. These 
easements have been introduced because Government 
recognises that the Covid-19 pandemic has placed 
unprecedented pressures on adult social care and that the full 
requirements of the Care Act (2014) may be difficult for Local 
Authorities to discharge. 

 

Recommendations It is RECOMMENDED that:  

 

 The Health and Wellbeing Board note three easements to 
the Care Act (2014) introduced by BCP Adult Social Care: 

 

1) Assessments for people who are deaf are delayed in 
some cases because these can only be undertaken 
face-to-face with interpreters. Further work is in hand 
to explore whether technology may provide a solution 
which would allow this easement to be lifted. 

2) Changes in the provision of Occupational Therapy 
prescribed adaptations and community equipment 
provisions in response to suppliers and builders 
operating a reduced or suspended service. There will 
be delays to some adaptations and equipment 
provision but, where appropriate, Occupational 
Therapy services will arrange for interim solutions. 

39

Agenda Item 8



 

3) Day services have been closed in order to comply with 
social distancing measures. Their function has been 
replaced by alternative provision within the community 
or client’s homes, including information, advice and 
welfare checks. 

 

Reason for 
recommendations 

The Covid-19 Act guidance notes that where services need to 
be changed, delayed or cancelled under a Level 2 easement, 
the relevant Local Authority Senior Manager or Assistant 
Director should consult the Principal Social Worker (PSW) and, 
assuming the PSW is satisfied, this position can then be 
presented to the Director for Adult Social Services for 
agreement. The easements set out in this report have been 
agreed using this governance process, following which, the 
guidance advises, the Health and Wellbeing Board should be 
notified. 

40



 

Portfolio Holder(s): Councillor Lesley Dedman, Cabinet Member for Health and 
Adult Social Care 

Corporate Director Jan Thurgood, Corporate Director for Adult Social Care 

Contributors David Vitty, Director, Adult Social Care Services 

Amy Hurst, Principal Social Worker, Adult Social Care 

Wards All 

Classification For Information 
Title:  

Background  

 
1. The Covid-19 pandemic has placed unprecedented pressures on local government 

adult social care. Government has recognised that the full requirements of the Care 

Act (2014) may be difficult for Local Authorities to discharge and has introduced 

easements to the Act. The provision of easement powers for Local Authorities took 

legal effect on 31st March 2020 through the Coronavirus Act (2020).  

2. The associated statutory guidance recognises that easements should only be 

exercised by Local Authorities where the workforce is significantly depleted or the 

demand on social care increases to the extent that it is no longer reasonable to 

comply with Care Act duties.  

3. In order to maintain the highest possible level of services, Local Authorities are 

required to comply with the pre-amendment Care Act provisions as far as possible, 

prioritising the well-being and safety of individuals. 

4. The guidance sets out four stages of easement:   

Stage1. Business as usual: operating under the pre-amendment Care Act;   

Stage 2. Applying flexibilities under the pre-amendment Care Act: Individual 

services are to be prioritised in the short term to ensure proper allocation of care 

and support using the current flexibilities within the Care Act. This would include 

the changing, delaying or cancelling of some service types.  

Stage 3. Streamlining services under Care Act easements: Operating under Care 

Act easements which introduce changes to Assessment, Care and Support 

Planning and Financial Assessments. 

Stage 4. Prioritisation under Care Act easements: Re-prioritisation of resources 

across the whole of adult social care which will mean removing resource from some 

service types. Sufficient care and support remains in place in order to ensure that 

the rights enshrined in the Human Rights Act are respected for all those in need of 

care and support. 

41



 

5. During April 2020, the Principal Social Worker (PSW) for BCP Adult Social Care 

reviewed all operational services to determine the three easements identified in 

this report.  

6. Health partners and local MPs have been briefed on the Easements as is 

required by national guidance.  Easements have been published on the BCP 

Council website and service users and carers who are directly affected by the 

changes have been informed and engaged in discussion about the impact of the 

changes for themselves.  

Summary of financial implications  

7. Although the overall response to Covid-19 has financial implications for Adult 

Social Care, there are no direct implications as a result of the easements, which 

reflect the legal process of recognising changes to statutory local authority duties. 

Summary of legal implications  

8. The legal position was set out in Government guidance for Care Act easements 

published on 31st March 2020: 

“Local Authorities and care providers are already facing rapidly growing pressures 

as more people need support because unpaid carers are unwell or unable to reach 

them, and as care workers are having to self-isolate or unable to work for other 

reasons. The Government has put in place a range of measures to help the care 

system manage these pressures. Local Authorities should do everything they can 

to continue meeting their existing duties prior to the Coronavirus Act provisions 

coming into force. In the event that they are unable to do so, it is essential that they 

are able to streamline present assessment arrangements and prioritise care so 

that the most urgent and acute needs are met. The powers in the Act enable them 

to prioritise more effectively where necessary than would be possible under the 

Care Act 2014 prior to its amendment. They are time-limited and are there to be 

used as narrowly as possible.” 

Summary of human resources implications  

9. None for BCP Council, but it is recognised that Tricuro day centre staff have been 

re-assigned to alternative roles or functions in response to centres closing. 

Summary of environmental impact  

10. The closure of day services has temporarily ended transport by taxi and fleet buses 

of clients to the centres which, in turn, will have reduced emissions. 

Summary of public health implications  

11.  The Director of Public Health has been made aware of the easements and 

although there is an impact on some adult social care clients of the three flexibilities 

set out in this document, there is no broad Public Heath impact. 

42



 

Summary of equality implications  

12. Care Act Easement Checklists were used by the Principal Social Worker to 

establish the impact of Covid-19 on all services. The checklists identified the 

following equality implications: 

Pressure on carers as a result of day centre closures could adversely impact 
women, as they are more likely to fulfil carer roles.  
 
OT provision supports and promotes the independence and wellbeing of 
people with a disability or long-term condition or age-related frailty. Delays in 
adaptations will impact these groups. 
 
People who are deaf are having their assessment delayed or undertaken 
using alternative methodologies due to the challenges of interpretation and 
social distancing.  

 

Summary of risk assessment  

13.  It is recognised that the closure of day services will place pressure on carers 

which, in the longer term, may lead to a risk of carers breakdown. To mitigate this, 

ASC carers services are supporting carers with new approaches such as video 

conference support meetings. Respite care remains available and day services, 

although not offering a buildings-based service, are providing outreach support to 

carers. 

Background papers  

Government Guidance: Coronavirus (COVID-19): changes to the Care Act 2014. 31st 
March 2020 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/coronavirus-covid-19-changes-to-the-
care-act-2014?utm_source=5993ac2b-7a43-48cc-b4ba-
62c7d8f070e9&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=govuk-
notifications&utm_content=immediate 

Appendices  

There are no appendices to this report. 
 
 
 

43

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/coronavirus-covid-19-changes-to-the-care-act-2014?utm_source=5993ac2b-7a43-48cc-b4ba-62c7d8f070e9&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=govuk-notifications&utm_content=immediate
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/coronavirus-covid-19-changes-to-the-care-act-2014?utm_source=5993ac2b-7a43-48cc-b4ba-62c7d8f070e9&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=govuk-notifications&utm_content=immediate
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/coronavirus-covid-19-changes-to-the-care-act-2014?utm_source=5993ac2b-7a43-48cc-b4ba-62c7d8f070e9&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=govuk-notifications&utm_content=immediate
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/coronavirus-covid-19-changes-to-the-care-act-2014?utm_source=5993ac2b-7a43-48cc-b4ba-62c7d8f070e9&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=govuk-notifications&utm_content=immediate


This page is intentionally left blank

44



1 

  

BCP Health and Wellbeing Board 
 

 
 

Report subject Better Care Fund – Planning for 2019/20 

Meeting date 4th June 2020 

Status Public Report  

Executive summary This report provides an update on progress of the Better Care Fund 

(BCF) Plan for 19/20 up until the end of February 2020, including 

information on the strategic themes and operational schemes and 

performance against the national BCF metrics.  

 

The report also considers budget issues, including the arrangements 

for extending existing BCF Section 75 agreements to include COVID 

19 pooled expenditure as the Dorset Integrated Care System has  

decided that an enhanced supply of out of hospital care and support 

services will be commissioned via BCP and Dorset Councils on behalf 

of the system.  

 

The plan was completed and signed off by the Board in September 

2019 and was then submitted for national approval and in January 

2020 NHS England advised the plan had received approval. A 

national programme of work is taking place led by NHS England 

considering changes to the BCF from 2021 onwards. 

Recommendations The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to: 

 

1.Consider the delivery of the plan and performance 

2. Delegate to the Chair and Vice Chair approval of the additions to 

the BCF Section 75 agreement in relation to the enhanced supply of 

out of hospital care and support services during the COVID19 

pandemic.  

Portfolio Holder(s): Cllr Lesley Dedman, Adults and Health 

Corporate Director Jan Thurgood, Corporate Director, Adult Social Care, BCP Council 

Sally Sandcraft, Director Primary and Community Care, Dorset 

Clinical Commissioning Group 

Contributors Kate Calvert, Deputy Director Primary and Community Care, Dorset 

Clinical Commissioning Group 

Phil Hornsby, Director-Adult Social Care Commissioning, BCP Council 

Elaine Stratman, Head of Strategic Planning and Quality Assurance, 

Adult Social Care Commissioning, BCP Council 

Wards All 

Classification For Decision 

45

Agenda Item 9



2 

 

 

 

 

1. Introduction 

 

1.1. This report provides an update on progress of the Better Care Fund Plan for 19/20 and 

delivery of the strategic themes and operational schemes for 2019/20. 

 

1.2. The report also considers how the budget is being managed, including the arrangements 

for extending existing BCF section 75 agreements to include COVID 19 spending as the 

Dorset Integrated Care System has decided that an enhanced supply of out of hospital 

care and support services will be commissioned via BCP and Dorset Councils on behalf 

of the system.  

 

1.3. The report also provides an update on how the Health and Wellbeing area is performing 

against the national BCF metrics. 

 

2. Background and Better Care Fund 2019-20 

 

2.1. Since 2013 the Better Care Fund (BCF) has been a programme spanning both the NHS 

and local government which seeks to join-up health and care services, so that people 

can manage their own health and wellbeing and live independently in their communities 

for as long as possible.  

 

2.2. The majority of pooled resources for the Better Care Fund came from existing 

expenditure within the health and social care system such as Disabled Facilities Grants 

(used for aids and adaptations) and financial contributions from Local Authority or CCG 

budgets. Additional short-term grants from central government have been paid directly to 

local authorities such as the Winter Pressures Grant and Improved Better Care Fund. 

These are used for meeting adult social care needs, reducing pressures (including 

seasonal) on the NHS and ensuring that the social care provider market is supported. In 

addition, the BCF is funded by a CCG minimum contribution, which is a national 

condition for meeting the national assurance process. 

 

3. Extending existing Better Care Fund section 75 agreements to include COVID 19 

spending arrangements 

 

3.1  The Government has allocated £1.3 billion to the NHS, via CCGs, to be used to enhance 

the discharge process and fund the cost of new or extended out of hospital health and 

social care packages as part of the Covid 19 response. The funding will cover the follow-

on care costs for adults who receive social care support, or people who need additional 

support, when they are out of hospital and back in their homes or care settings and extra 

costs incurred in preventing people having to go into, or return from, hospital.  

 

3.2  The national hospital discharge guidance issued by NHS England during the Covid 19 

period came into force on 19th March 2020 meaning that health and care systems and 

providers had to change their discharging arrangements and the provision of community 

support during the period. The new national approach is a Discharge 2 Assess model, 

which is based on assessment happening in the community with hospital therapists and 

46



3 

Social Worker following people out of hospital and completing their assessment at home 

or a care setting. An evaluation of learning will take place in order to inform the potential 

implementation of D2A models post pandemic.  An important part of this work will involve 

understanding resident experience during this period and working with local Healthwatch 

to understand this. 

 

3.3  The national hospital discharge guidance  outlines that additional financial support 
provided to CCGs and local Councils should be pooled locally using existing statutory 
mechanisms (namely section 75 agreements) and where systems decide that an 
enhanced supply of out of hospital care and support services will be commissioned via 
the Council. The guidance says that existing Section 75 agreements can be extended to 
include these services and functions and the Council should commission the health and 
social care activity on behalf of the system. The activities covered will be in line with the 
national discharge requirements. For the Dorset Integrated Care System, the activities 
for BCP Council covered in the Section 75 agreement will be in line with Dorset Council 
with the exception of the additional budget for the contract with the Community 
Equipment Service, which will sit with BCP as the lead commissioner. 

 

3.4 Currently the arrangements for managing the section 75 agreement extensions are being 

discussed between BCP Council, Dorset Council and Dorset CCG. There will need to be 

underpinning arrangements in place for separately identifying spend within the 

agreement and monitoring of this to ensure funding flows are correct. NHSE&I will 

reimburse CCGs through a monthly allocation process. The BCF and its Section 75 

agreement are formally governed through the Health and Well-Being Board.  In order to 

make decisions in relation to the extension of the Section 75 agreement in a timely 

manner, the Board is recommended to delegate to the Chair and Vice Chair of the Health 

and Well-Being Board the authority to approve additions to the Section 75 agreement on 

behalf of the Board on recommendation from senior officers. 

  

4. Emerging BCF Plan Developments 

 

4.1. The national Better Care Fund Programme has commenced two projects to inform the 

development of BCF planning from 2021 to 2024. These projects will run from January 

until May 2020 to consider: 
 

 how the BCF can improve delivery of integrated health and care, and align the 

programme more effectively with other services, such as housing. 

 the future model for providing support and advice at regional level. 

 

4.2.1 This work will bring together local perspectives, building on the Government’s review of 

the BCF to inform and shape the future of the programme. This will include consideration 

of objectives and metrics, along with the process of developing and implementing BCF 

plans. 

 

5. Approach to integrated Services at Health and Wellbeing level 

 

5.1. Dorset CCG and BCP Council working in conjunction with local NHS providers and the 

wider care market continue to invest all BCF allocation under the five operational 

schemes detailed below: 

 

47



4 

5.1.1 Maintaining Independence - below highlights some of the activities within the 

scheme: 

a. The Pan-Dorset Integrated Community Equipment Service, ensures 90% of 

standard equipment is delivered within three days of being requested. A 

strongly integrated approach between Health and Social Care Practitioners is 

ensuring that the Partnership consistently supports people, with increasingly 

complex needs, to remain independent in the community.  

 

b. The online information and advice service My Life My Care has worked hard to 
engage with GP Surgeries, Pharmacies and small businesses to promote the 
website, with positive feedback from the public. The website receives 
approximately 8,000 hits per month; during April 2020 there were 5,631 visits 
to Covid19 information pages which include food and meal delivery services, 
pharmacy prescription services, carers support, FAQs, volunteering and 
befriending and general advice such as exercising at home and how to care for 
your wellbeing and mental health.   
 

5.1.2 Early supported discharge - this scheme responds to the national 8 high impact 

changes that make a difference to discharge planning. This includes working with 

acute hospitals in planning for safe discharge into community settings.  

 

Dorset CCG have been working with the national team the “Emergency Care 

Intensive Support Team” (ECIST) to review the system pathways into and out of 

hospital and use the recommendations to implement improvements during 

2020/21. Dorset CCG has been actively monitoring Long Length of Stay 

performance via the contracting route, with the Head of Urgent and Emergency 

care now attending all acute contracting meetings. 

 

 The nationally mandated discharge requirements during the Covid 19 period have 

brought radical changes to hospital discharge  arrangements which has generated 

local and national interest to understand the learning from a Discharge 2 Assess 

model and how this could influence future models of care post-pandemic. 

 

As at the end of February 2020, nationally set targets for delayed transfers of care 

were not being met. The bed day target for delayed transfers of care set currently 

only reflects the Bournemouth and Poole Health and Wellbeing area of 25 bed 

day rate, if this included Christchurch this may increase to a rate of approximately 

28. From national evaluation, the main reasons for delays are lack of availability of 

domiciliary care availability, nursing home care and non-acute NHS services.  

 

In order to address issues, in January 2020, a short-term contract providing rapid 

response, discharge from hospital domiciliary care capacity was put in place to 

ease pressures over the winter period as well as additional transitional beds.  

Daily system leader calls were in place when the hospital reached Opel 3 and 4 

levels to facilitate flow within the hospital.   There has also been in increase in 

capacity within the domiciliary care market  since January 2020, which has been 

maintained during the Covid 19 period. 

 

5.1.3. Carers – Priority has been to ensure Carers are receiving consistent services 

across the conurbation. This has now been established.  There are 5000+ carers 

receiving support through the Carers’ Information Service. 

48



5 

 

During the Covid-19 period, a number of adjustments have been made in order to 

continue to deliver services. Carer social events have moved to online video 

conferencing as a way of providing social contact and advice. The popularity of 

these is growing rapidly with very positive feedback received from participants. 

Video conferencing is now being used by the Carers Choir, some of the 

complimentary therapists, and a Pilates instructor. 

 
Some of our counsellors now provide their service using skype or the telephone, 
so carers can still access them. 

 
Requests for Carers Cards being renewed has increased as carers are using 
them for identification when food shopping at the supermarkets.   

 
The local emergency back-up scheme (Carers-in Crisis) is still available for carers 
to join, and we have created a Covid-19-specific Emergency Plan available to 
download or through the post that carers can complete in case they develop 
Covid-19 symptoms and need to share information about the person they usually 
care for. 

 
For carers in the Shielded group of vulnerable people identified through the NHS, 
Carers services have been in touch to see if carers need support. Carers who 
may needed additional support are being contacted proactively on a regular basis.  
 
The CRISP website is regularly updated with information and on-line resources 
such as podcasts.  

 

5.1.4  Moving on from Hospital Living. This pooled budget funds integrated 

personalised care for people with complex needs who have moved on from long 

stay hospital accommodation.  From 1 April 2019, this has been a pooled budget 

between BCP Council and Dorset Clinical Commissioning Group and supports 85 

residents.  

 

5.1.5   Integrated Health and Social Care Locality Teams.   These are multi-

disciplinary teams made up of GPs and GP Practice staff; physical and mental 

health team; adult social care staff and the voluntary sector to support people who 

have long-term conditions; are frail and those with complex needs.  Work is also 

underway to more clearly define our rapid response offer provided in the 

community as well as deliver in-reach into ED departments with a view to 

implement changes in 2020/2021. 

 

This all links to roll out of work across wider Dorset, which was established as part 
of the Clinical Services Review, about growing capacity in primary and community 
services to reduce the reliance on hospital interventions and reducing non-elective 
admissions. This is work taking place across the county and is about growing 
capacity and making best use of what we already have within the Primary Care 
Networks, not just GPs, but extends to community services and social care 
workforce. This is to ensure we engage with people earlier in community settings 
and have appropriate rapid interventions and response services in place. 

 
This is a major, long term piece of work and the year 1 investment stream of this 
work has just been completed, investing £6.5 million into Primary and Community 

49



6 

services. Further to this in July 2019 the Primary Care Network investment stream 
commenced, this steps up next year, recognising the increased demand and need 
to reinvest back into General Practice to ensure it is resilient and sustainable and 
also produce a sustainable difference in order to reduce the need for hospital 
intervention.  
 
Over last 5-10 years there has been a steady increase in hospital investment and 
lower investment in GP and primary care services, however by turning the tables 
on this and investing more in primary and community services we should start to 
see a difference such as reducing the numbers of non-elective admissions where 
targets are not being met. It must be acknowledged however, that this is starting 
from a low baseline and the situation will not change overnight. 

 

Below provides a breakdown of the spending by scheme type, source of funding 

and expenditure. A high-level view of this is detailed below: 

 

Scheme Description 
CCG 

contribution  

BCP 

contribution 
Total 

  £000 £000 £000 

Maintaining Independence 7,798 13,374 21,172 

Early Supported Hospital Discharge 4,883 3,086 7,969 

Carers 1,148 0 1,148 

Moving on From Hospital Living 7,265 2,182 9,447 

Integrated Health & Social Care 

Locality Teams 
19,105 0 19,105 

Total 40,199 18,642 58,841 

 

6. Strong and Sustainable Care Markets 

 

6.1. A key strategic theme within the Better Care Fund Plan is to enable further integration by 

developing and maintaining strong and sustainable care markets.  Key elements of this 

work are:  
 

a. A joint domiciliary care provider framework for BCP Council and Dorset CCG is well 

established and supports an integrated approach to maintaining people in their own 

homes.  

 

b. There is a programme of engagement with providers through a series of workshops 

and learning and recruitment events.  

 

c. Figbury Lodge, the new 80 bed care home in Poole, owned by BCP Council was 

opened in September 2019. Twenty of the beds are designated for intermediate care, 

jointly funded by the Council and Dorset CCG, with rehabilitation and reablement 

input provided by therapists employed by the Dorset Healthcare Trust. The remainder 

of the places are for people with dementia (with or without nursing) and challenging 

50



7 

needs. Coastal Lodge, also owned by BCP Council operates a similar number of 

intermediate care beds in the Bournemouth locality. 

 

d. BCP Council have also acquired a 70 bed care home within the Bournemouth area of 

the conurbation to increase the number of affordable care home beds. 

 

e. To further increase the dementia bed capacity within the area, accreditation and self-

assessment tools have been introduced together with an enhanced fee structure. Use 

of the tool is enabling care homes to become more sustainable as the local demand 

moves from frail elderly to dementia care. 

 

f. A pan-Dorset sector leadership group was established in late 2019 with adult social 

care sector representatives and senior officers from BCP Council Dorset Council and 

Dorset CCG.  This is enabling a strategic dialogue with the sector on key issues such 

as use of national financing for the sector during the COVID19 period.  

 

During the Covid19 period, Dorset Integrated Care System partners are in regular 

communication with providers to ensure that they are supported and that statutory agencies 

understand the issues for the sector.   There is a pan-Dorset Adult Social Care Task and Finish 

Group as part of the COVID19 Local Resilience Forum governance framework where adult 

social care sector representatives meet weekly with representatives of both Councils, Dorset 

Clinical Commissioning Group; the Care Quality Commission and the Civil Contingencies Unit.  

A sub-group of the Social Care Group is convened twice weekly to work with Care Homes 

representatives on the needs of Care Home residents and providers.  In addition, there is very 

regular contact made with each individual social care provider in the BCP area in order to 

understand the issues for each provider and to provide appropriate support.  The item on the 

Board’s agenda on the Care Home Support Plan provides detailed information on the support 

plans for Care Homes and the wider sector through the COVID19 period.  

 
 

7. Performance Metrics 

 

Metric 1:  Non-elective spells in hospital (all ages) measures the reduction in the 

number of spells of unplanned acute admissions to hospital (lower spells is better 

performance). 
 

 April 2019 to February 2020 outturn was 49,259.9 

 Target for 2019/20 is 51,246 

 

Full year figures will have been impacted by the COVID19 pandemic.  The 
projection as at the end of February was the target for the year was unlikely 
to be met.  

 

Metric 2:  Admissions to Residential and Nursing Homes (older people 65+) 

measures the long-term support needs of people met by admissions to residential and 

nursing care homes.  (lower admission rate is better performance).   
 

 April 2019 to February 2020 outturn was 849.65 per 100,000/p (or 720 admissions) 

per 100,000 population 

 Target for 2019/20 is 592 per 100,000 population 

 

51



8 

Targets are not being met. There is a higher proportion of residential beds in the 

Bournemouth area and historically there has been a higher number of adults in 

Bournemouth entering care homes. This pattern has carried forward to BCP 

Council. As part of the intended Adult Social Care Strategy for BCP Council, there 

will be strategic review of local needs in relation to nursing, residential and extra 

care and this will inform future market shaping activity with emphasis placed on 

options which maximise independence. 

 

There have been high numbers of admissions to residential care during the Autumn 

and Winter period reflecting the support provided to hospitals in order to manage 

the increased pressure when on OPEL 4.  This in addition to an increase in the 

capacity in the domiciliary care market in order to facilitate hospital discharge. 

 

Work continues to develop systems and reporting for BCP Council so that data 

capture and analysis is improved for this indicator.  

 

Metric 3:  Percentage at Home 91 days after discharge (older people 65+) measures 

the number of older people who were still at home after being discharged from hospital 

into reablement/rehabilitation services.  (higher percentage is better performance). 

 

 April 2019 to February 2020 outturn was 76.8% 

 Target for 2019/20 is 79.7% 

 

The target for this indicator is not being met. A strategic review of reablement 

services is planned and improvements will be made in data capture by providers.   

 

Metric 4:  Delayed Transfers of Care (aged 18+) measures the appropriate setting for 

people to regain their independence by reducing the time they stay in a hospital bed.  

For the purpose of the Better Care Fund it measures delays which are attributable to the 

whole system of health and social care, based on a bed day rate per month.  (Lower 

bed rate is better performance). 
 

 April 2019 to February 2020 provisional outturn was 33.13 bed day rate 

 Target for 2019/20 is 25 bed day rate. 

 

 Therefore, the DTOC target is not being met.  The current target for the BCP 

Board is based only on the historical data for Bournemouth and Poole and does not 

include Christchurch and target setting does not consider sufficiently seasonal 

pressures and trends.  NHSE has indicated that target setting for 2020/21 will be 

based on the population for BCP Council.  

 

8. Summary of financial implications  

 

8.1 The non-recurrent nature of funding solutions in 2019/20 and the challenges to the 

sustainability of funding for both the CCG and LAs means that managing the BCF budget 

creates risks for both Dorset Clinical Commissioning Group and BCP Council.  The table 

below summarises the sources of funding and area of spend. 

52



9 

 

Sources of funding Area of spend   

  Social Care 

Community 

Health Total 

  £000 £000   

BCP contributions     

 - Disabled Facilities Grant 3,101  3,101 

 - iBCF 11,296  11,296 

 - Winter pressures Grant 1,748  1,748 

 - Additional LA contribution 2,497  2,497 

      

CCG contributions 10,919 29,280 29,975 

      

  29,561 29,280 58,841 

  

 

8.2 There was a £743k budget pressure experienced by the Dorset wide (CCG, BCP Council 

and Dorset Council) Integrated Community Equipment Service in 2019/20.  Funding 

partners have covered the overspend through the risk share arrangements.  

 

8.3  In respect of Moving on from Hospital Living, Partners agreed to split this arrangement 
 into two separate pooled budgets for 2019/20 East (CCG/BCP) and West (CCG/DC). 
The outturn for the   CCG/BCP pooled budget was £55k underspend. Discussions are 
ongoing between partners to finalise the longer-term arrangements of the two pooled 
budgets.   
  

8.4   Information from NHSE has indicated that the funding sources of the Winter Pressure 

Grant and the improved Better Care Fund will be combined for 2020/21 and will not be 

ring fenced for winter pressure spending. Provisional information has also been supplied 

about the CCG minimum contribution uplift for 2020/21 which will be in the region of 5%.  

 

9. Summary of legal implications   

 

9.1 New Section 75 agreements will be completed in early June as prescribed in the 

planning guidance for each of the pooled budget components in the fund. 

 

10. Summary of equality implications   

 

10.1 An overall Equalities Impact Assessment (EqIAs) was completed when the 2017-19 BCF 

plan was agreed. The plan for 19-20 has minimal changes. An EqIA will be carried out if 

there any proposed future changes to policy of service delivery.  

 

53



This page is intentionally left blank

54



 

BCP Health and Well-Being Board  

 

Report subject Coronavirus (Covid19) Care Home Support Plan  

Meeting date 4th June 2020 

Status Public  

Executive summary As part of its Coronavirus (COVID19) Support Package to 
Care Homes Guidance, Government has required all Local 
Authorities with social care responsibilities to work with 
system partners to put in place arrangements to support care 
homes and make a return to Government by 29th May 2020 
which sets out an overview of the current activity and forward 
planning to deliver the national Care Home Support package. 

Health and Well-Being Boards are identified as a key 
stakeholder in both the development and the implementation 
of the local plans.  

Relevant documents will be distributed to all Board members 
and appended to the Board papers for the meeting 
subsequent to the return submission to Government on 29th 
May 2020.  

Recommendations It is RECOMMENDED that: 

 1) Board members review the implementation of the 
national Care Home Support Package in the BCP 
area 

2) Identify any additional significant actions which 
will assist in the implementation of the local Care 
Home Support Plan  

3) Consider whether the Board wishes to request a 
further report on the implementation of support to 
local care homes.  

Reason for 
recommendations 

The support of Care Homes during the COVID19 pandemic 
through the co-ordinated input of all partners is a key priority 
in terms of ensuring the health and well-being of care home 
residents and staff.   

55

Agenda Item 10



 

Portfolio Holder(s): Cllr Lesley Dedman - Cabinet member for Adult Social Care 
and Health 

Lead Chief Officers  Graham Farrant Chief Executive-  BCP Council  

Tim Goodson Accountable Officer - Dorset Clinical 
Commissioning Group  (CCG)  

Report Authors Jan Thurgood - Corporate Director Adult Social Care, BCP 
Council 

Sam Crowe - Director of Public Health  

Sally Sandcraft - Director of Commissioning, Dorset CCG 

Vanessa Read - Director of Nursing, Dorset CCG  

Phil Hornsby - Service Director Adult Social Care 
Commissioning, BCP Council 

Wards All  

Classification Review of submitted plans and identification of any further 
actions required.  

Title:  

 

1. Background  

1.1  On 14th May 2020, the Government published Guidance in relation to 

supporting care homes through the Covid19 pandemic.  The guidance 

acknowledged that many care providers are facing challenges and that care 

homes have been particularly susceptible to outbreaks of COVID19.  The 

plan’s focus was therefore on how to prevent and control COVID19 in all 

registered care homes.  The guidance set out steps which must be taken to 

keep people safe in care homes and the support that will be brought together 

across national and local government to help care providers put this into 

practice. 

1.2 The key component parts of the national support package were set out as: 

- Training in infection control with all care homes to be offered training in 

infection control and the effective use of PPE through programme co-

ordinated by Clinical Commissioning Groups 

- Ensuring that all Care Homes have access to PPE as is recommended in 

national guidance 

- Reducing workforce movement between care homes and minimising risk for 

care workers 

- Ensuring that people moving to care homes are tested prior to admission and 

people who have tested positive for COVID19 are cared for in appropriate 

environments which enable required periods of isolation.  Where a person is 

being transferred from an NHS Hospital or provision to a Care Home, it is the 

responsibility of the NHS to conduct the test for COVID19 and local 

56



 

arrangements for care home admissions have been developed to implement 

the principle that test results are known prior to a person’s admission to a care 

home. 

- Stepping up clinical support for care homes from primary and community 

health services 

- Comprehensive testing of care home staff and residents 

- Building the social care workforce. 

1.3 All local authorities with responsibility for adult social care were required by 

the guidance to put in place care home support planning with a requirement to 

submit a planning return by 29th May 2020 which should be made public.  The 

planning return was to be developed with the Clinical Commissioning Group 

Accountable Officer and to take into account the views of health and care 

providers, Healthwatch and groups representing or advocating for people who 

use social care services.  This return is to include a letter from the Local 

Authority Chief Executive which sets out a short overview of current activity 

and forward plan; information on current level of access to the support offer 

and confirmation that local authorities are carrying out a daily review of the 

local care market and taking actions immediately where necessary to support 

them.  

 
    1.4 Given the timescales for production of the return, it was not possible to 

achieve detailed consultation with the full range of partners on the Health and 
Well-Being Board prior to submission of the planning return.  The Health and 
Well-Being Board is recommended at its meeting on 4th June 2020 to consider 
the local return in detail and to identify any significant actions which will further 
strengthen support to local care homes.   The planning return will be 
submitted on 29th May 2020 and relevant papers will be distributed to Health 
and Well-Being Board members and appended to the papers for the Board 
meeting subsequent to the submission. It should be noted that the planning 
returns will be subject to a process of regional assurance undertaken by the 
Better Care Fund assessment team.  
   

2 Summary of financial implications  

2.1 The Government has announced that £600 million will be made available to 
the care sector through Councils for the implementation of infection control 
measures with a focus on care homes. The allocation to each Council is 
based on the number of Care Home beds registered by the Care Quality 
Commission in the Council area.  The money will be provided to Councils in 
two tranches in June and then July 2020.  Seventy-five percent of the grant is 
to be distributed to care homes in line with registered bed numbers. The 
distribution of the remaining twenty-five percent of the grant is for local 
determination and can be distributed to domiciliary care providers as well as 
Care Homes.  There will be a discussion with local leaders across the care 
sector as part of the process for determining the local priorities for the 
discretionary component of the funding.  

57



 

 
2.2 BCP Council decided in April 2020 to provide a 10% uplift to all providers 

commissioned by the Council from 19th March to end of July 2020 and is 
asking that  care providers experiencing severe financial impacts during the 
COVID19 period approach the Council for discussions on an open-book 
basis.   Dorset CCG has offered up to 10% uplift for commissioned providers 
on an open book basis from 1st April to end of June 2020.   

 
3. Summary of legal implications  

3.1 Local Authorities have been required by Government Guidance (Coronavirus 
(COVID19) Care Home Support Package published  14th May and updated on 
22nd May 2020)  to co-ordinate the development of local support plans for 
Care Homes and submit planning return documents on 29th May 2020.  

4 .Summary of human resources implications  

4.1 Key elements of the national support package for Care Homes cover 
assistance in the recruitment and the support of staff working in the Care 
Home sector.   

5. Summary of environmental impact  

5.1 The detailed advice on infection control covers both guidance on transport for 
staff care homes and is relevant to the built environment of care homes and 
the ability of care homes to provide quarantining and isolation for residents if 
this is required.  

6. Summary of public health implications  

6.1 The key concern of care home support planning is to ensure the health and 
well-being of care home residents during the pandemic through effective 
infection prevention and control measures.  It is also important to ensure that 
through this period the mental health and well being of both residents and 
staff in Care Homes are considered and supported.  

7. Summary of equality implications  

7.1 Care Homes provide care to a wide range of people including older people; 
people diagnosed with many different long-term conditions and disabilities 
and people who have learning disabilities; autism and mental health issues.  It 
is crucially important that all elements of the national care home support 
package are implemented in a way which respects the views, rights and 
needs of all residents.  It is particularly important to ensure that the rights of 
people who lack mental capacity are protected and to understand also the 
views of carers and relatives.  

8. Summary of risk assessment  

8.1  The national care home support plan is intended to address the risks of 
spread of COVID19 infection into and within Care Homes and to protect 
residents and staff.  

58



 

Background papers  

Government Guidance: Coronavirus (COVID19) Care Home Support Planning – 
published 14th May/ updated 20th May 2020 
 

59



This page is intentionally left blank

60



BCP Mission statement here 

LGA SEND Peer Challenge

28th to 31st January 2020

61

A
genda Item

 11



Team

• Lead peer – Sharon Fryer, Assistant Director, Integrated Children’s Health/SEND, St Helens Council

• Operational Peer  SEND – Caroline Cannon, Head of SEN & Vulnerable Learners, Middlesbrough Council

• Operational Peer SEND – Chris Jones, SEND Strategic Development Lead, Nottinghamshire County 

Council

• Operational Peer Education – Kevin Mahon, LGA Associate

• Health Peer  – Gill Tyler, Designated Clinical Officer, NHSVale Royal CCG

• Review Manager – Jill Emery , LGA

Process

• Self-evaluation  

• Document and data review

• Review of EHCPs

• Interviews, focus groups and visits

Peer review team &  process

62



• Leadership and Governance

• Capacity and Managing Resources

• Identification of children and young people who have special educational needs 
and/or disabilities

• Assessing and meeting the needs of children and young people who have 
special educational needs and/or disabilities

• Improving outcomes for children & young people who have special educational 
needs and/or disabilities

Areas considered

63



Recommendations

• Instigate an urgent end-to-end review of the 

EHCP process

• Ensure the statutory partners understand and 

demonstrate their commitment to delivering the 

requirements of the SEND reforms 

• Develop and implement a clear communications 

strategy at all levels 

• Engage with parents and carers to build 

confidence and consult on the draft SEND and 

Inclusion Strategy as soon as possible 

• Provide meaningful mechanisms to ensure that 

children and young people’s voices are heard 

and acted upon 

• Ensure there is effective management oversight 

on strategic planning and processes in place to 

ensure effective use of public resources 

• Work with schools, settings and stakeholders to 

ensure they fully understand the SEND reforms 

and their responsibility in meeting the needs of 

children and young people with SEND 

• Develop Joint Commissioning at pace 

• Build an inclusive culture across all schools and 

hold people to account through robust challenge 

and support 

• Provide training and support to all on the principles 

of co-production and embed this practice across all 

the areas 

• Seek external partnerships and networks to learn 

from good practice 

• Review the Self-Assessment to provide a more 

coherent narrative which focuses on outcomes for 

children and young people with SEND 

64



SEND Dev. and  Transformation Board

Children’s Services

SEND; SI; MIT; EPS; EY; CSC; Q and C 

Public Health

Parents  and Carers Together

Adult Social Care (including PfA)

CCG

SENDIASS

Schools

SEND Development  and Transformation

Workstreams

1. Joint commissioning

2. Co-production

3. School place sufficiency

4. Quality assurance

5. Preparing for adulthood

6. Inclusion

65



• Local Area: multi-agency partnership

• Inclusion: IDP established (culture & approach);  

services; WFD; arrangements

• EHCP: review; framework and tools established; 

standards agreed;  audits completed (plans, 

advice); training & development; plan templates 

confirmed

• PfA: AR toolkit developed; enhanced  transition 

arrangements through schools; reviewing 

/extending  local offer and in authority 

arrangements  for post 16

Progress: • School  sufficiency (SEND placements); 

multiple proposals in  development to  be 

established between 09.20 and 09.21; HNB 

recovery plan

• Joint commissioning: Multi-agency resource 

panels established to agree tripartite 

arrangements; SaLT review (June 20); NHS 

Dorset CCG  internal panel to consider requests 

that do not meet the criteria for Continuing 

Healthcare (CHC), Section 117 and individual 

patient treatment requests, received from multi-

agency partners. 

• Co-production: strengthened arrangements 

with  parents and carers;  co-produced priorities/ 

actions; single  approach to  comms; consultant  

identified to support  wider  co-production activity

66



Forward Plan – BCP COUNCIL HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

Recommendation: 

That the Health and Wellbeing Board approve the Forward Plan and makes amendments as necessary. 
 

Item Title  Reason for item  Desired Outcome 

 

Lead Officer(s) Why has it come to the 

Board? 

Board meeting: 4 June 2020  

The Response to COVID 19 

of Health and Well-Being 

Board Partners   

To enable the Health and 

Well-Being Partners to 

report on their response to 

Covid 19.  

To share the response to 

Covid 19 with the Board.  

Jan Thurgood 

Judith 

Ramsden, Kate 

Ryan, Tim 

Goodson, Sam 

Crowe  

For the Board to be advised of 

the response by Health and 

Well-Being Partners to Covid 19 

in the BCP area. 

Community Response to 

Covid 19    

To advise the Board of 
the community 
response activity 
across Bournemouth, 
Christchurch and 
Poole under 
Operation Shield, 
Together We Can and 
the Voluntary and 
Community Sector to 
Covid 19.   

To share the Community 

response to Covid 19 with 

the Board  

Kelly 

Ansell/Karen 

Loftus  

For the Board to be advised of 

the community response to 

Covid 19 in the BCP area. 

67

A
genda Item

 12



Item Title  Reason for item  Desired Outcome 

 

Lead Officer(s) Why has it come to the 

Board? 

The Application of Care 

Act Easements for BCP 

Adult Social Care   

To advise Board that BCP 
Council Adult Social Care 
has implemented three 
easements to the Care Act 
(2014) under powers 
granted by the 
Coronavirus Act (2020). 

To ensure that the Board 

is advised of the 

easements in accordance 

with the guidance. 

David Vitty  To comply with the guidance 

to report to the Board. 

Better Care Fund – 

Planning for 2019/20   

For the Board to receive 

an update on the Better 

Care Fund for 19/20 up 

until the end of February 

2020 including information 

on the strategic themes 

and operational schemes 

and performance against 

the nation BCF Metrics. 

The Board provides active 

oversight of the Delivery 

of the Better Care Fund 

plans and performance in 

relation to the national 

metrics set for the BCF. 

 

Elaine 

Stratman/Sally 

Sandcraft  

The Board both approves and 

provides oversight to the 

delivery of the Better Care Fund 

and performance in relation to 

national metrics through regular 

reports.  

Coronavirus (Covid19) 

Care Home Support Plan 

For the Board to receive 

the Care Home Support 

Plan which was required 

to be submitted to 

Government by 29th May 

2020 

The Board provides 

oversight of the plans for 

Support of Care Homes in 

the BCP area.  

Graham 

Farrant, Jan 

Thurgood and 

Sam Crowe Tim 

Goodson 

Government Guidance requires 

Health and Well-Being Boards 

to be consulted on COVID19: 

Care Home Support Plans.   

SEND LGA Peer Review  To receive feedback from 

the LGA Peer Review  

The Board provides 

governance to ensure that 

all partners work 

effectively in order to 

improve outcomes for 

Judith 

Ramsden/Sally 

Sandcraft  

The Board commissioned an 

LGA Peer Review which took 

place in January 2020  

68



Item Title  Reason for item  Desired Outcome 

 

Lead Officer(s) Why has it come to the 

Board? 

children, young people 

and young adults with 

SEND and their families. 

Board Meeting: 17 June 2020 – this meeting will be cancelled and rescheduled to the end of July 2020 (date to be confirmed) 

Health and Wellbeing 

Strategy 

The Board is being asked 

to approve a Health and 

Well-Being Strategy.  

It is a statutory 

requirement of a Health 

and Well-Being Board to 

approve and deliver a plan 

to improve the health and 

well-being of local 

residents. The Board is 

being asked to adopt and 

then oversee the 

implementation of a 

Health and Well-Being 

Strategy for the BCP area.  

Sam Crowe/Jan 

Thurgood  

For the Board to approve a 

Health and Well-Being Strategy 

for the BCP area.  

Terms of Reference 

(including membership) 

and Business Protocol  

To review the terms of 

reference, Business 

Protocol and membership 

of the Board  

To provide an annual 

review of the terms of 

reference, business 

protocol and Membership 

of the Board  

Democratic 

Services  

For the Board to provide an 

overview of its operation and 

recommend any changes as 

appropriate.  

69



Item Title  Reason for item  Desired Outcome 

 

Lead Officer(s) Why has it come to the 

Board? 

Safe and Well Checks  The Board to receive a 

presentation on Safe and 

Well Checks which are 

provided by the Dorset 

and Wiltshire Fire and 

Rescue Service 

All agencies promote the 

Safe and Well Checks to 

local residents 

Seth Why Request for presentation made 

by DWFRS in order to raise 

awareness of the service and its 

benefits to local residents 

CAMHS Transformation 

Project 

The Board to receive an 

update on the progress of 

the project. 

 

To maintain an overview 

of the project  

Elaine Hurll  

 

To provide the Board with the 

opportunity to monitor the 

Transformation Project. 

SEND Up-date report     

Board Meeting: 1 October 2021 

 

SEND Up-date report      

Better Care Fund  Monitoring reports every 

six months  

That the Board has 

oversight of the delivery, 

outcomes and finances of 

the Better Care Fund 

Elaine 

Stratman/Sally 

Sandcraft  

Health and Well-Being Board 

provides governance and 

oversight to the approval and 

70



Item Title  Reason for item  Desired Outcome 

 

Lead Officer(s) Why has it come to the 

Board? 

delivery of Better Care Fund as 

required by national guidance. 

Board Meeting: 18 March 2021 

SEND Up-date report      

Better Care Fund  Monitoring reports every 

six months  

That the Board has 

oversight of the delivery, 

outcomes and finances of 

the Better Care Fund 

Elaine 

Stratman/Sally 

Sandcraft  

Health and Well-Being Board 

provides governance and 

oversight to the approval and 

delivery of Better Care Fund as 

required by national guidance. 

Board Meeting: 17 June 2021 

SEND Up-date report      

Meeting dates to be confirmed  

71



Item Title  Reason for item  Desired Outcome 

 

Lead Officer(s) Why has it come to the 

Board? 

Promoting Active Life The Board will receive a 

report which will set out 

proposals for how the 

Board can take forward its 

agreed Theme for 

2020/21 which is 

promoting an active 

lifestyle to all BCP 

residents  

The Board has agreed to 

have a theme for 202/21 

which is promoting active 

lifestyles so that there is 

an increase in the 

percentage of residents 

(children and adults) who 

participate regularly in 

physical activity.  

Sam Crowe The Board has requested a 

report on proposals for how it 

can take forward its first annual 

theme which is promoting active 

lifestyles for all residents. 

Suicide Prevention 

Strategy  

The Board is asked to 

consider the approach to 

suicide prevention being 

taken by all partners 

including the Suicide 

Prevention Partnership 

Plan.  

Engagement and input 

from the Board into work 

being undertaken by all 

partners to prevent 

suicide. 

Elaine Hurll and 

Sam Crowe   

To enable the Boards views to 

be considered and to enable the 

Board to maintain oversight of 

this issue 

SEND Quarterly Updates Quarterly Monitoring 

Reports 

That the Board maintains 

oversight of the issue and 

contributes to the 

development of progress 

against the Code of 

Practice. 

Judith 

Ramsden/Julian 

Radcliffe 

To enable the Boards views to 

be considered and to enable the 

Board to maintain oversight of 

this issue 

Development Session: 4 June 2020 – this development session will be rescheduled as a formal meeting of the Board has been 

scheduled for this date and time slot 

72



Item Title  Reason for item  Desired Outcome 

 

Lead Officer(s) Why has it come to the 

Board? 

BCP Local Plan / 

Development Strategy 

  Nick Perrins  

BCP Housing Strategy   Lorraine 

Mealings 

 

Air Quality   Kate Ryan  

 

 

 

73



T
his page is intentionally left blank

74


	Agenda
	5a Minutes of the meeting held on 30 January 2020
	5b Action Sheet
	6 The Response to Covid 19 of Health and Wellbeing Board Partners
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	NHS Response to Covid 19�Preparing for Surge and Changes to Services 
	�NHS Response to Covid 19�Operating with Covid 19 �
	�NHS Response to Covid 19�Concerns �
	�NHS Response to Covid 19�Phase 2 �
	�NHS Response to Covid 19�Public Engagement �
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16

	7 Community Response to Covid 19
	8 The Application of Care Act Easements for BCP Adult Social Care
	9 Better Care Fund - Planning for 2019/20
	10 Coronavirus (Covid 19) Care Home Support Plan
	11 SEND - LGA Peer Review
	12 Forward Plan

